


Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the
statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and total
comprehensive income (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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To the Members of Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material u neertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

10. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2019 for which there were no material
foreseeable losses. The Company did not have any long-term derivative contracts as at March 31, 2019.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2019.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2019.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Partner

Membership Number: 058507
UDIN: 19058507AAAABG9723

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 29, 2019
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Paisabazaar
Marketing and Consulting Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Paisabazaar
Marketing and Consulting Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
‘These responsibilities include the design, im plementation and maintenance of adequate in ternal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Com pany's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain au dit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Paisabazaar
Marketing and Consulting Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounfing
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepara tion of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

o
\

Amitesh Dutta

Partner

Membership Number: 058507
UDIN: 19058507AAAABG9723

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 29, 2019
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Paisabazaar
Marketing and Consulting Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019

i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year
and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties as disclosed in Note 4 on Property, plant
and equipment to the financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the said
Order are not applicable to the Company.

il The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 5(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited

Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of income tax, goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance and labour welfare fund, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including duty of customs, value added tax and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also refer note 32 to
the financial statements regarding management’s assessment on certain matters relating to
provident fund.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, and duty
of excise or value added tax or goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

vili.  As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or
Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of
Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Paisabazaar
Marketing and Consulting Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

xi.

xii.

Xiii.

Xiv

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Rela ted Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm R

egistration Number: 012754N/N500016
M&«fﬁ:\

Arnitehn Dutta

Partner

Membership Number: 058507
UDIN: 19058507AAAABG9723

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 29, 2019



Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Balance Sheet

As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Notes N )
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment 4 664 81 507.05
Intangible assets 3 38.63 1897
Financial assets
(i) Loans 6(a) 78.71 70.69
Current lax assets (Net) 7 1,339.88 602.36
Other non-current assets 8 13.02 19.58
Total non-current assets 2,135.05 1,218.65
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6(b) 1,001.09 E
(ii) Trade receivables 6(c) 4913.38 3,415.62
(i1i) Cash and cash equivalents 6(d) 867.72 756.37
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 6(e) 111.00 950.00
(v) Loans 6(a) 7.88 549
(vi) Other financial assets 6(f) 1,525.79 2,046.97
Other current assets 9 558.04 8245
Total current assets 8,984.90 7,256.90
Total asscts 11,119.95 8,475.55
EQUITY AND LEIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10(a) 2,687.04 2,146.10
Other Equity
Reserves and surplus 10(b) 2,082.96 3,010.85
Total equity 4,770.00 5,156.95
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 12(b) 23.48 11.74
Employee benefit obligations 11 169.76 63.09
Total non-current liabilities 193.24 74.83
Current liabilitics
Finaneial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 12(a) 204.17 0.78
(b) total outstanding dues other than (i) (a) above 12(a) 4,684 33 1,959.16
(ii) Other financial liabilities 12(b) 597.74 403.58
Employee benefit obligations 11 226.53 114 83
Other current liabilities 13 44394 76542
Total current liabilities 6,156.71 3,243.77
Total liabilities 6,349.95 3,318.60
Total equity and liabilities 11,119.95 8.475.55

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Balance Sheet referred Lo in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board ol Directors
Firm Regigtration Number: 012754N/N500016

fa v Mepe— o [

Amitesh Dutta Alok Bansal Manoj
Partner Director Direclor Company Secretary
Membership No. D58307 DIN : 01653526 DIN : 02745526 M No 28873

UDIN: | o5 850 F AAAA BGIT 232

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: July 29. 2019 Date: July 29. 2019 Date July 29. 2019 Date: July 29. 2019

hatrma Richa Arva NS



Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Revenue from operations 14 15,465.31 9,647.19
Other income 15 111.70 56.91
Total income 15,577.01 9,704.10
Expenses:
Employee benefit expense 16 8,563.30 4,050.33
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17 357.34 299.05
Advertising and promotion expense 18 13,043.64 431543
Network, internet and other direct expense 19 965.46 380.70
Administration and other expense 20 2.362.22 861.48
Total expenses 25,291.96 9,906.99
Profit/(Loss) before tax (9,714.95) {202.89)
Income tax expense :

Current tax 21 - 13,15

Tax related to earlier years “491) -

Deferred tax 22 - -
Total tax expense (4.91) 13.15
Profit/(Loss) for the year (9,710.04) (216.04)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations [Gain/(Loss)} 11 (22.75) 4.64
Income tax relating to these items - -
Other comprehensive income for the yenr, net of tax {22.75) 464
Total comprehensive income for the year (9,732.79) (211.38)
Eamings per equity share: [Nominal value per share Rs.10/- (March 31, 2018: Rs.10/-)]
Basic (in Rs.) 26 (40.82) (1.03)
Diluted (in Rs ) 26 (40.82) (1.03)

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Regisigation Number: 012754M/M300016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Amitesh Dutta Alok Bansal Manoij Sharma Richa Arya [REAN
Partner Director Director Company Secretary | -
Membership No. 058507 DIN : 01653526 DIN : 02745526 M. No. 28873 \ 2

UDIN: } 905%509 AAAA R GHTR 23

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 29, 2019

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 29, 2019

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 29, 2019

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 29, 2019
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Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity

1) Equity share capital
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes Amount
Asat April 1,2017 1,941.39
Changes in equity share capilal 10(a) 204.71
As at March 31, 2018 2,146.10
Changes in equity shate capital 10(a) 540,94
As at March 31, 2019 2,687.04

1) Other equity
Reserves and surplus
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Securities premium Retained earnings  Group Settled share Total

Particulars Notes based payment
reserye

Balance as at April 1, 2017 4,538.61 (3,888.00) 471.83 1,122.44
(Loss) for the year 10(b) - (216.04) - (216.04)
Other comprehensive income 10(b) - 4,64 - 4.64
Employee share-based payment expense 16 - = 304.52 304.52
Total comprehensive income for the year = (211.40) - (211.40)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue of equity shares 10(b) 1,795.29 - - 1,795.29
Balance as at March 31, 2018 : 6,333.90 (4,099.40) 776.35 3,010.85
(Loss) for the year 10(b) - (9,710.04) - (9,710.04)
Other comprehensive income 10(b) - (22.75) - (22.75)
Employee share-based payment expense 16 - - 345.84 345.84
Total comprehensive income for the year - (9,732.79) - (9,732.79)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue of equity shares 10(b) 8.459.06 . - 8,459.06
Balance as at March 31, 2019 14,792.96 (13,832.19) 1,122.19 ! 2,082.96

The above statement of changes of equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the Statement of changes in equity refeired to in our report ol even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountanis LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Repistration Mumber: 01 2754N/NS00016

T"Nl/ NJL'CM': Ao o—
Alok Bansal Manoj Shafina Richa Ari'a
Pariner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No, 058507 DIN : 01653526 DIN : 02745526 M. No 28873
UDIN: | 906 RS0T AAAA G 9322
Place: Gurugram Place: Gutugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugiam

Date: July 29, 2019 Date: luly 29, 2019 Date: July 29, 2019 Dalte: luly 29, 2019
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Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited

Statement of cash flows

Particulars Notes March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

: : (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Cash ow from operating acrivities

(Loss) before income fax (9,714.95) (202 89)
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expense 17 35734 299.05
Loss on propeity, plant and equipment wiitlen of T 20 066 -
Gain on sale of investmenls 15 (75.79) (35.95)
Provisions lor doubtful debts 20 28928 14.06
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 15 (6.00) (566)
Income accrued but not due 15 (0.99) (11.25)
Interest income classified as investing cash flow N (27.83) (3.88)
Changes in [air value of linancial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 (1.09) =
Employee shaic-based payment expense 16 345 84 304 52
Change in operating assels and liabilities

(Incicase)/Decrease in ade 1eccivables o(c} (1,787 04) (2,776.65)
Incicase/(Decicase) in ttade payables 12(a) 2928 56 1,039 48
Deciease/(Increase) in other non-curtent assets 8 6.56 653
Increase in other current financial liabilities 12(b) 19415 171.69
(Incicase)Decrease in other current assets 9 (475.58) 24788
(Increase) in current lax assets 7 (1,470 13) (965 91)
(Increase)/Decrease in loans-current 6(a) {2.39) (1.82)
(Incicase)/Decrease in other financial assels 6(f) 522.17 (659.41)
Inciease in cmployee benefit obligations 11 19562 106,50
Increase in other current liabilities 13 (321.48) 61935
(Increase)/Deciease in loans-non-current 6(a) (202) 204
Increase in other non-curtent financial tiabilities 12(b) 1174 1174
(Increase) in other bank balinces tfe) #3000 (250.4000)
i outllow from operiations (B,194.38) (2,790.59)
Income taxes paid 7 73752 476.38
Net cash outlow from uperating netivities (7,456.85) (2,314.21)
Cash flows from investing activities

Puichase of propeity, plant and equipment 45 (535.42) (773.38)
Purchase of curent investments (10,720.00) (3,750 00)
Proceeds [tom sale of curtent investment 9.795.79 4.786.23
Interest received 27.83 3.86
Net cash inflow/outllow) from inyesting aetivities (1,43 1.80% 266.75
Cash lows from financing activities

Proceeds fiom issue of cquily shares {1r1uI|Liu'|E_ seeynlies preminm) 10} 4,000,010 2.000.00
1E\r| cash inflow from fnancing activities O, 00M,00 2,01, 00
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash cquivalents 111.35 4747
Cash and cush equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 6(d) 75637 803 806
Cash and cash equivalents atend of the vesr 867,72 756,37

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following :

Balances with Bank [Refer note 6(d))
Cash on hand |Refer note 6(d)]
Balunies per statement of cash flows

March 31,2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

866 10
162
867.72

March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

75623
014
756.37

Notes:

I The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepated under the Indirect Method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard

{Ind AS -7 on "Statement of Cash Flows”]
2 Figures i biackets indicate cash outllow

Fus 1s the Cash Flow Siatement referied to in our teport of even dale
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Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 1:

Note 2:

General Information

Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited (“the Company” or “Paisabazaar”) is a private limited
Company incorporated on 15th December 2011 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 having its
registered office at Plot no.135P, Sector 44, Gurugram, IHaryana. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Etechaces marketing and consulting private limited. The Company operates its website www.paisabazaar.com for
showing online comparison and sales of financial products like home/car/personal/education/other loans, credi
cards, saving accounts, mutual funds etc.

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

Compliance with IND AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following items:
- Certain financial assets measured at fair value;

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and

- Share based payments

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company’s operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time
between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company has applied the Ind AS 115, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” for the first time for their
annual teporting period commencing 1 April 2018. Refer note 2.1(h) for change its accounting policies for
adoption of Ind AS 115.




¢. Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization and
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant
and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over the useful lives, using
the straight line method. The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the
management's expert which in some cases are different as those specified by Schedule 11 to the Companies Act,
2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.

The residual values of the assets are assessed to be nil. The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
the statement of profit or loss.

The useful lives of assets have been considered as follows:

Description Useful life ]
Computers 3 years -
Furniture & Fixtures* 7 years N
Office Equipment* 3 years R -
Lease Hold Improvements Period of Lease or 3 years

whichever is earlier

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment the management believes that the useful lives as given
above best represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence, useful lives of
these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of-the-Companies Act,

2013.
g&




f. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
amortization period and the amortization method are reviewcd at least at cach financial year end. If the expected
useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company has software licenses under intangible assets which are amortized over a period of 3 years.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets
recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost
of intangible assets.

g.Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

h. Revenue recognition
Accounting policy applied till March 31, 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of goods and service tax
(GST).

Revenue from services: The Company recognizes revenue from web aggregator services when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s services as described below. The Company bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.

o Commission on web aggregation of financial products
e Investment advisory fees

e Sale of Leads

e  Online marketing and consulting




Timing of recognition: Revenue from above services is recognized in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered.

Revenue in excess of billing of web aggregator services is included as unbilled revenue in other current financial
assets.

Changes in accounting policies:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2018 on March 28, 2018 which includes Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' effective
from reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2018. Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has adopted
Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" using the modified retrospective transition method, which
is applied to contracts that are not completed on or before March 31, 2018. Accordingly, the comparatives have
not been retrospectively restated. The Company has evaluated and there is no impact on the financial statements
including retained earnings as at April 01, 2018 resulting from the implementation of this standard.

No Significant judgements have been made by the company in applying Ind AS 115 that significantly affect the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers.

Accounting policy applied from April 1,2018

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognises
revenue when it transfers control over a promised service to a customer.

Sale of services
The Company earns revenue from insurance web aggregator services as described below:

e Commission on web aggregation of financial products
e Investment advisory fees

o Sale of Leads

e Online marketing and consulting

Revenue from web aggregator services is recognized when the control in services is transferred as per the
terms of the agreement with customer. Revenues are disclosed net of the Goods and Service tax charged on
such services. In terms of the contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the
balance sheet as unbilled revenue under other financial assets where the amount is recoverable from the
customer without any future performance obligation. Cash received before the services are delivered is
recognised as a contract liability, if any.

Revenue from above services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. When
there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such
uncertainty is resolved.

Foreign currency transactions
Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’) i.e. Indiap.eupee(INR), which
is Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited's functional and presentation cupréncy:

X/
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Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency (INR) using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance scheme, Gratuity and Compensated
absences.

i) Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contributions to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance scheme are considered as
contribution to defined contribution plan and charged as an expense based on the amount of contributions
required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.

ii) Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses , the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan asset
(excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognized in other comprehenswe
income is reflected 1mmed1ate]y in retained earnings and is not reclassified to proﬁt or loss. Past service cost is
recognized in profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined liability or asset.

iii) Short-term obligations

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the services.

These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their
entitlement of future compensated absences;

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

iv) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value
of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the
end of the xeportlng period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obllgatmu Remeasurements
as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised iy prulll oF I()s«_.




The obligations in relation to compensated absences are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet as the
Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting
period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

v) Share-based payments

Share-based payments are considered as 'Equity-settled share-based payment transactions' under Ind AS 102. The
Company measures the fair value of the services received and recognises an expense in the statement of profit and
loss with a corresponding increase in equity by reference to the fair value at the grant date of the equity
instruments granted.

Leases

As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected
inflationary cost increases.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax as
adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares, except where results are anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based
on the available information.

Income Taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the

end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to

situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes” provisions where

appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. A / 2\
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Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that is probable that tax profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made. Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related
asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain
that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which
the change occurs.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.
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Financial Assets

Classification:

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories

« those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through profit
and loss), and

- those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Initial Recognition:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement:

After initial measurement, financial assets classified at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are carried at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value changes are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes
interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of profit and
loss. On derecognition of the financial asset other than equity instruments, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Any financial asset that does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortized cost or as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are fair valued at each reporting date with all the changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt instruments
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.

o Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit and loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified franmequity to
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profit or loss and recognised in other income/ (expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

e Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instruments that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other income in the period in which it arises.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 31 details how the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

» The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

» retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the
Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the
financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised
to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income from fixed deposits is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently meastired-at-dinoitized cost. Any




difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of any entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency.

Segment Information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. Refer Note 33

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule I1I (Division II), unless otherwise stated.
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Note 3: Critical estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting
policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than
those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant
notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements:
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

- Estimated useful life of tangible assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates
relate to technical and economy obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and equipment.

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Note 11
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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Note 4 : Property, plant and equipment

(Rs. in Lalhs)
Particulars Computers Office Furniture & Leaschold Total

Equipment Fixtures Improvements
Year ended March 31, 2018
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 41.47 14.66 3.14 - 59.27
Additions 401.16 96.65 80.21 167.31 745.33
Digposals n = - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 442.63 111.31 83.35 167.31 804.60
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 4.48 3.19 0.24 - 7.91
Depreciation charge during the year 129.20 41.33 69.84 49.27 289.64
Disposals - - - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation 133.68 44.52 70.08 49.27 297.55
Net carrying amount 308.95 66.79 13.27 118.04 507.05
Year ended March 31,2019
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 442.63 111.31 83.35 167.31 804.60
Additions 450.02 1.43 0.28 44.97 496.70
Disposals (1.75) (0.20) - - (1.95)
Closing gross carrying amount 890.90 112.54 83.63 212.28 1,299.35
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 133.68 44.52 70.08 49.27 297.55
Depreciation charge during the year 243.54 33.89 223 58.62 338.28
Disposals (1.09) (0.20) - - (1.29)
Closing accumulated depreciation 376.13 78.21 72.31 107.89 634.54
Net carrying amount 514.77 34.33 11.32 104.39 664.81
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Note 5 : Intangible assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Computer Software Total

Year ended March 31,2018
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 4.30 4.30
Additions 28.05 28.05
Disposals - #

Closing gross carrying amount 32.35 32.35

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 3.97 3.97
Amortisation charge during the year 9.41 9.41
Disposals - =

Closing accumulated amortisation 13.38 13.38
Closing net carrying amount 18.97 18.97

Year ended March 31,2019
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 32.35 32.35
Additions 38.72 38.72
Disposals - -

Closing gross carrying amount 71.07 71.07

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 13.38 13.38
Amortisation charge during the year 19.06 19.06
Disposals - -

Closing accumulated amortisation 32.44 32.44

Closing net carrying amount 38.63 38.63
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Note 6 : Financial assets

Note 6 (a) : Loans

Non-current

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits

Total

Current

Unsecured, considered good
Loan to employees

Security deposits

Total

Note 6(b) : Current Investments

Investment in mutual funds
Quoled

3,33,211.82 Units (March 31, 2018: Nil units) in Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund Growth - Direct Plan

Total

Total current investments

Aggregale amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregale amount of unquoted investments

Aggrepate amount of impairment in the value of investments

Note 6(c) : Trade receivables

Trade receivables
Less: Loss allowance
Total

Current portion
Non-current portion

Break-up of security details
Trade receivables considered good - Secured
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured

Trade receivables - credit impaired

Loss allowance
Total

Note 6(d) : Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bank
Cash on hand
Total

Note 6(¢) : Other Bank Balances

Balances in fixed deposil accounts with original maturity with more than
3 months but less than 12 months
Total

of am

(Rs. in Lakhs)

of

As at
March 31,2019

As at
March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

78 71 70.69
78.71 70.69
7.74 374
0.14 1.75
7.88 5.49
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

{Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

1,001.09
1,001.09 =
1,001.09 =
1,001.09
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
5,216.72 3,429.68
(303.34) (14.06)
4,913.38 3.415.62
4.913.38 3,415.62
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
4,913.38 341562
303.34 14.06
5,216.72 3.429.68
(303.34) (14.06)
4.913.38 3.415.62
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
866.10 756.23
162 0.14
867.72 756,37
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
11100 950.00
111.00 950.00

MCW Llain—




Note 6(f) : Other flinancial assets

Current

Unbilled revenue

Amount recoverable from Holding Company for expenses

Awmount recoverable from fellow Subsidiary Company for expenses
Interest accrued but not due

Total

Note 7 : Current tax asscts (Net)

Advance income tax (net of provision Rs Nil, March 31, 2018: Nil)
Total

Note 8 : Other non-current assets

Prepaid rent
Tolal

Note 9 : Other current assets

Advance lo vendors
Less: Loss Allowance
Balance with Government Authorities
Prepaid
- Rent
- Other expense
Others
Total

As al
March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

1,524 02 -
- 2,034.94
078 0.78
0.99 11.25
1,525.79 2,046.97
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(RBs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
1,339.88 60236
1,339.88 602,36
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
{Rs, in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
13.02 19.58
13.02 19.58
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
{Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
3286 49.90
(23.90) 8.96 - 49,90
508.51 11.83
6.56 6.53
3311 14.16
0.90 0.03
558.04 82.45




Note 10 (a): Equity
Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital

Number of shares
(In Lakhs)

Amount
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2017 250.00 2,500.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2018 250.00 2,500.00
Increase during the year 50.00 500.00
As at March 31, 2019 300.00 3,000.00
(i) Movements in equity share capital

Amount

Number of shares

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(In lakhs)
As at April 01,2017 194.14 1,941.39
Add: Shares issued during the year 20.47 204.71
As at March 31, 2018 214.61 2,146.10
As at April 01,2018 214.61 2,146.10
Add: Shares issued during the year 54.09 540.94
As at March 31, 2019 268.70 2,687.04

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive Lhe remaining assets of the Company
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(ii) Shares of the Company held by holding / ultimate Holding Company

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(In Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (In lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Etechaces Mark.etmg ar.ld Consulting Private Limited (the Holding 268.70 2,687.04 214.61 2.146.10
Company) and ils nominee
268.70 2,687.04 214.61 2,146.10

(iii) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Number of shares Number of shares

0, . o .
(In Lakhs) % holding (In Lakhs) % holding
Etechaces Marketing and Consuiting Private Limited, the Holding 268.70 100.00% 214.61 100.00%
Company
26870 214.61

M




Note 10 (b): Other Equity

Reserve and surplus

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Securities premium 14,792.96 6,333.90
Retained earnings (13,832.19) (4,099.40)
Group settled share based payment reserve 1,122.19 776.35
Total reserves and surplus 2,082.96 3.010.85
i) Securitics premium (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Opening balance 6,333.90 4,538.61
Additions during the year 8,459.06 1,795.29
Deductions/adjustments during the year - -
Closing balance 14,792.96 6,333.90

ii) Retained earnings

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Opening balance (4,099.40) (3,888.00)
Net (Loss) for the period (9,710.04) (216.04)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained eamnings

- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit

obligation, net of tax [Gain/ (loss)] (22.75) =
Closing balance (13,832.19) (4,099.40)
iii) Group settled share based payment reserve (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Opening balance 776.35 471.83
Employee Stock Option Expense 345.84 304.52
Closing balance 1,122.19 776.35

Nature and purpose of other reserves:

a) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The securities premium is
utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Group settled share based payment reserve

Group settled share based payment reserve is used to recognise the fair value of options granted to the
employees of the Company by the Holding Company under ESOP scheme.




Note Il : Employee benefit obligations

March 31, 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)
March 31, 2018

Current Noun-current Total Current Non-current Total
Gratuity 133 169 76 171.09 061 63.09 63.70
Compensaled absences 22520 . 22520 114 22 - 114.22
Total cmployee benefit obligations 226.53 169.76 396.29 11483 63.09 177.92

(i) Compensated absences

The Icave obligations cover the Company’s liability for earned leaves. The Company’s liabilily is actuarially delermined (using the Projected Unil Credit method) at the end of each
year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise

The amount of the provision of Rs, 225.20 lakhs (March 31, 2018 — Rs. 114.22 lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer
seltlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment
within the next 12 months. The following amounts reflect leave that is not expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months,

March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
(Its. in Lakhs)

Leave obligations not expected (o be settled
within the next 12 months

174.08

91.55

(ii) Defined contribution plans

a) Provident Fund

The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per
regulations. The contributions are inade to registered provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it
has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year ended March 31, 2019 towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 372.45 Lakhs

(March 31, 2018- Rs. 173.49 Lakhs). Refer Note 16

b) Employee State Insurance

The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of employee state insurance, The expense recognised during the year ended March 31, 2019 towards defined contribution

plan is Rs. 157.24 Lakhs (March 31, 2018- Rs. 64,71 Lakhs). Refer Note 16

(iii) Post employment benefit plan obligations- Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continugus service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for
the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contribution to recognised funds in India, The Company does not fully fund the liability
and maintains a target level of funding lo be maintained over a period of lime based on estimations of expected gratuily payments

a) The amounts recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows

Present value
of obligation
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Fair value of plan
assets
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Net amount

(Rs. in Lakhs)

April 1, 2017 59.20 29.56 29.64
Current service cosl 45.24 4524
Past service cost 117 1,17
Interest Cosl 4.59 - 459
Expecled return on plan assets 229 (2.29)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 51.00 2.29 48.71
Remeasurements

Relurn on p!an assets, e,\*clud{ng amounls 054 054

included in intereslt expense/(income) -

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic 0.00

assumptions

(GainYloss from change in financial (6.12) (612)

assumptions

Experience (gains)/losses 094 094
Total amoun't rc‘cogniscd in other (5.18) 0.54 (4._()4)-
comprehensive income .
Employer contributions (10.00)
Benelit payments 0.00 CA

\ %\
March 31,2018 B 105,02 ] 16370
5y




Present value

Fair value of plan

Net amount

of obligation assets
April 1, 2018 105.02 41.31 63.71
Current service cost 8479 84.79
Past Service Cost 0.00 -
Interest expense/(incomne) 798 - 7.98
Expected return on plan assets 3.14 3.14)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 92.77 3.14 89.63
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts
included in interest expense/(income) (A ©.J7)
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic .
assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial 14.70 14.70
assumptions
Experience (gains)/losses 8.22 822
Total amour!t r(.:cogmsed in other 22.92 ©.17) 22.75
comprehensive income
Employer contributions - 5.00 (5.00)
Benefit payments -
March 31, 2019 220.71 49.62 171.09
b) The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows:
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Present value of funded obligations 220.71 105.01
Fair value of plan assets 49.62 41.31
Deficit of funded plan 171.09 63.70
Unfunded plans - -
Deficit of gratuity plan 171.09 63.70

¢) The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Discount Rate (per annum)

Rate of Increase in Compensation levels (p.a.)
Altrition Rate

18 years to 30 years

30 years to 44 years

44 years to 58 years

Expected average remaining working lives of
employees (vears)

Employees Gratuity Fund

March 31, 2019
7.60%
10.00%

47 00%

3.00%
0.00%

32.90

March 31, 2018

7.75%
10.00%

40.00%

7.00%
0.00%

32.20

Compensated absences
March 31, 2019

7.60%

10.00%

47.00%

3.00%
0.00%

3290

Assumptions regarding future mortality for pension are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience. The discount rale assumed is
deterimined by reference to market yield at the balance sheet date on government bonds. The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in the employment market

March 31, 2018

7.50%
10.00%

40 00%

7.00%
000%

32.20
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d) Sensitivily analysis:
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation 1o changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumplion
March 31,2019 March 31,2018  March 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Discount rate 1% 1% -14% 1% 18% 14°%,
Salary growth rate 1% 1% 17% 13% -14% -11%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation lo significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of (he reporting period) has been applied as when calculaling the defined benefit liability
recognised in the balance sheet. Assumptions other than discount rate and salary growth rate are nol material for the Company

¢) The major categories of plans assets are as [ollows:

Funds Managed by Insurer* - 100%

*The Funds are managed by Life Insurance Corporation and Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited. They do not provide breakup of plan assets by investment type.

f) Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed 10 a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility:

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference (o bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The gratuity fund is
administered through Life Insurance Corporation of India and (insurer) Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited under its group gratuity scheme. Accordingly almost the
entire plan asset investments is maintained by the insurer. These are subject 1o inlerest rate risk which is managed by the insurer,

Changes in bond yields: A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans’ assets maintained by
the insurer. The gratuity fund is administered through Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) of India & Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited under its Group Gratuity
Scheme.

g) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligalion is 23 years (2018 - 24 years)
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted post employment benefit plan (gratuity) is as follows

Less than Between Between Over 5
_ Total
ayear 1 -2 years 2 -5 years years
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
March 31, 2019
Defined benelit obligation (Gratuity) 133 11,32 131.12 12837 272.14
Total 1.33 11.32 131.12 128.37 272.14
March 31, 2018
Defined benefit obligation (Gratuity) 1.22 5.69 63.63 73.43 143.97

Total 1.22 5.69 63.63 73.43 143.97




Note 12 : Financial liabilitics

Note 12(a) ¢ Trade payables

Current

Trade payables : micro and small enterprises (Refer note 23)
Trade payables : others

Trade payables to related parties

Total

Note 12(b) : Other financial liabilities

Current
Employee related payables
Total

Non-Current
Lease equalisation reserve
Total

Note 13 : Other current liabilities

Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source
Total

As at
March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

204.17 078
3,531.75 1,878.72
1,152.58 8044
4,888.50 1,959.93
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

597.74 403.58
597.74 403.58
23.48 11.74
23.48 11.74
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

443.94

765.42

443.94

765.42




Note 14 : Revenue (rom operations

Commission on web aggregation of financial products
Investment advisory [ees

Sale of Leads

Online markeling and consulting,

Total

Note 15: Other income

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost

Interest Income accrued but not due

Unwinding of discount oh security deposits

Net gain on financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuations

Net gain on sale of investments

Total

Note 16 : Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Less: Salary charged to Holding company*

Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer note 11)
Compensated absences

Graluity (Refer note 11}

Staff welfare expenses

Employee share-based payment expense [Refer note 25(b)]
Total

Year ended

March 31,2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Year ended

March 31,2018
{Rs. in Lakhs)

8,559.12 4,693.13

488 520
4,334.06 3,009.12
2,567.25 1,039, 24
15,065.31 9,647.19

Year ended
March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Year ended
March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

27.83 3.88
0.99 11.25
6.00 5.66
1.09 -
- 0.17
75.79 3595
111.70 56.91
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
4,079.87
7,282.56 (787.55) 329232
529.69 238.19
161.49 91.25
89.63 48.70
154.09 75.35
345.84 304.52
8,563.30 4,050.33

*As per the agreement with holding company, salary costs of Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited (“the Company™) were shared with Etechaces Markeling and
Consulting Private Limited (“the Holding Company™), commensurate with support provided to the Holding company, by the employees of the Company till March 31, 2018. The

employees of the Company have not provided any support (o Holding company during the year, given the focus on growing its own business during the year. Thu

been shared with the Holding company during the year (March 31, 2018 - Rs. 787.55 lakhs).

Note 17 : Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible asset
Total

Note 18 : Advertising and promotion expenses

Advertisement expenses

Less: Cost charged to holding company (Refer note 27)
Business promotion expenses

Total

13,021.05

erw. Lo

s, no salary costs have

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
338.28 289.64
19.06 941
357.34 299.05
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) N (Rs. in Lakhs)
6,030 38
13,021.05 (1,729.29) 4,301.09
22.59 1434
13,043.64 4,315.43




Note 19 : Network, internet and other dircet expenses

Internct and server charges
Computer and equipment rental
IT consultancy charges
Communication expenses
Total

Note 20 : Administration and other expenses

Electricity and water expenses (Refer note 28)
Legal and professional charges
Rent (Refer note 24 (b) & 28)
Repair and maintenance - others
Security and housekeeping expenses
Office expense
Travel and conveyance
Recruitiment expenses
Rales and taxes
Insurance
Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) Fees (Refer note 27)
Printing and stationery
Poslage and courier expense
Payment to auditors
As Auditor;
Audit fee
Tax audit fee
Reimbursement of expenses
Payment pateway charges
Documents colleclion charpes
Bank charges
Training and seminar
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for doubtful advances
Loss on property, plant and equipment written off
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Year ended

March 31, 2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Year ended

March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

58223 59.26
090 1.56
30.75 10.76
351,58 309.12
965.46 380.70
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
171.05 98.42
37.37 14.17
608.74 35267
40.75 113.63
84.92 6727
2227 17.91
109.71 7731
24 .49 24.10
50.82 37.41
15.87 9.36
773.27 -
16.80 12.70
5.15 291
11.50 853
0.50 0.50
0:13 0.10
29.78 0.10
27.81 1.21
3.60 1.38
6.47 335
289.28 14,06
23.90 .
0.66
0.51 .
6.87 4.39
2,362.22 861.48




Note 21: Income tax expense

Year ended Year ended
(1) Income tax expense March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Current tax

C'urrent tax on profits for the year ' 13.15
Adjustments for current tax related to earlier years (4.91)

Total current tax expense (4.91) 13.15
Income tax expense (4.91) _I 315

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

(Loss) before tax (9,714.95) (202 89)
l'ax at the Indian tax rate of 26% (2017-2018 — 26%) (2,525.89) (52.75)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Capital gain tax on sale of current investments - 1315
I'ax losses and temporary differences for which no deferred income tax is recognised 2,525.89 5275
Adjustments for current tax related to earlier years 4.91) -

Income Tax Expense (4.91) 13.15




Note 22: Deferred Tax Assets

a) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
As at
March 31, 2019
Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Deferred Tax Liability -
Deferred Tax Assets -

Net Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) -

b) Components of Deferred Tax Assets
As at
March 31,2019

As at
March 31,2018

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Property, plant and equipment & Intangibles 29.62 23.66
Defined benefit obligations 103.03 61.52
Lease equalisation reserve 6.10 3.05
Provision for doubtful debts 78.87 3.65
Provision for doubtful advances 6.21 -
Tax Losses 862.92 862.85
Others 36.30 0.30
Total 1,123.06 955.03
¢) Unused tax losses and unrecognised temporary differences:
As at

Particulars

Unused tax losses for which no deffered tax asset has been recognised
Other tax credits #

Deductible temporary differences

Total

Potential tax benefit @ 26% (March 31, 2018 @ 26%)

Expiry dates for unused tax losses :
- March 31, 2024
- March 31, 2025

March 31,2019
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

3,299.69 3,299.69

19.23 18.97
1,000.53 354.55
4,319.45 3,673.21
1,123.06 955.03
1,039.66 1,039.66
2,260.03 2,260.03

# It includes unabsorbed depreciation which can be carried forward indefinitely and have no expiry date.

Considering the fact that the Company has completed its eight year of operations and has incurred losses in current
financial year as well, a deferred tax asset has not been recognized on deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses

and unused tax credits.
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Note : 23 Dues 1o micro and small enterprises

o am

According (0 the information available with the management, on the basis of intimation received from suppliers, regarding their status under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the Company has amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises under the said Act as [ollows:

As At
March 31,2019
{Rs. in Lakhs)

As At
March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act remaining

unpaid as at year end. [Reler note 12 (a)] 20359 078
Interest due to suppliers registered under MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as
at year end 0.58 0.14
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year 176.73 8.27
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest paid, under Seclion 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable 1owards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for 0.55 0.05
payments already made :
Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 0.14 E
Note 24 : Commitments
(a) Capital commitments
Capilal expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Property, plant and equipment 22.78 15.99
{b) Non-cancellable operating leases
The Company leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within one to five years. The leases have varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of leases are re-negotiated.
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation lo non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:
Within one year 197 27 19563
Laler than one year but not laler than five years 449.96 645.59
Later than five years &
Rental expense relating to operating leases Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
352,67

Total renlal expense relating to operaling leases (Refer note 20) 608 74




Note 25: Share based payments

(a}

(b)

Employee option plan
T'he Parent company {Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limited) has set up a tiust 10 administer the ESOP scheme under which options have been gianied to certain

employees of the Company and its subsidiaties. Under this ESOP scheme, the employees can puichase equity shaves by exercising the options as vesied at the price specified in the
grant. The options gianted 1ill Mairch 31, 2019 have a vesting petiod of maximum 5 years fiom the date of grant

i} Summary of options granted under plan

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Average exercise price Average exercise price per
per share oplion Number of options share option Number of options
(Rs.) (Rs.)

Opening Balance 10 2,133 10 1,444
Granted during the year 10 95 10 807
Exercised during the year* 10 (86) 10 (80)
Forfeited/lapsed during the year 10 (56) 10 (38)
Closing Balance 2,086 2,133
Vested and exercisable 911 657

*The weighted average share price at (he dale of exercise of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2019 was Rs. 10 (March 31, 2018 - Rs_ 10)
No options expired during the periods covered in the above tables

ii) Share options outslanding at the end of year have following expiry date and exercise prices :

Share options Share options
Grant Grant date Expiry date Exercise price March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Grant 3 April 01, 2014 March 31, 2030 10 853 930
Grant 4 April 01, 2015 March 31, 2030 10 46 46
Grant 5 April 01, 2016 March 31, 2030 10 338 350
Grant 6 April 01,2017 March 31, 2030 10 541 564
Grant 7 December 01, 2017 March 31, 2030 10 213 243
Grant 8 April 01, 2018 March 31, 2030 10 95 -
Total - - 2,086 2,133

Weighted Average remaining conteactual life of options 11 Years 12 Years

outstanding a{ end of period

iii) Fair value of options granted

The fair value at grant date of options granted during the year ended Maich 31, 2019 was Rs. 193,792 per option for Grant 8 (March 31, 2018 - Rs. 69,873 and Rs. 116,783 for Grant 6
and Grant 7 respectively). The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model which takes into account the éxercise price, the term of the option, the share price at
grant date and expected price volatility of the undeilying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended March 31, 2019 included:

a) options are granted at face value and vest upon completion of service for a period not exceeding five years. Vested options are exercisable till Maich 31, 2030
b) exercise price: Rs. 10 (March 31, 2018 - Rs. 10)

¢) grant date: April 1, 2018 (March 31, 2018 - April 1, 2017 and December 1, 2017)

d) expiry date: March 31, 2030 (March 31, 2018 - March 31, 2030)

e) expected price volatility of the Company’s shares: 67.6% for Giant - 8 (March 31, 2018- 48.83% for Grant - 6 and 58 63% for Giant - 7)

M) expecled dividend yield: 0% (March 31, 2018 — 0%)

) risk-fiee interest rate: 7.83% for Grant 8 (March 31, 2018 - 6.7% for Grant 6 and 7.1% for Grant 7}

The expecled price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information

Expense arising front share based payment transaction

Total expenses aiising fiom share-based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense wete as follows:

March 3t, 2019 March 31, 2018
Employee option plan 345.84 304 52
‘Total employec share based payment exp_l.‘nse — 345.84 304.52
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Note 26: Earnings/(Loss) per share
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Basic and diluted
Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. in Lakhs) (9,710.04) (202.89)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 23,785,454 19,750,405
Basic Earnings/(L.oss) per share (Rs.) A/B (40.82) (1.03)
Diluted Earnings/(Loss) per share (Rs.) (40.82) (1.03)
10 10

Face value per share (Rs.)

The Company does not have any outstanding potential dilutive equity shares.




Note 27:

Note 28:

Note 29:
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Related Party Disclosures:
Disclosurcs in accordance with the requircments of IND AS - 24 on Related Parts Disclosures as idennified by the management are set out as below

{a) Names of Related Parties and natwre of relationship:
(i) where conirol exists
Holding, Company Crechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Lunited

Kev Management Personnel Mr. Naveen Kukreja. WTD
Mr Yashish Dahiva, Dircclor
Mr Alok Bansal. Dircclor
Mr Manoj Sharma. Direclor
(b) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties
{1s in Lakhs)

Holding Company I " Fellow Subsidiaries Key Management Personnel*
Particulars Etechaces Marketing And Consulting Leall Support Scrvices Policybazaar Insurance Web
Private Limited Private Limited Apgregator Privale Limited

31-Mar-19 3-Mar-18 31-Mar-19_| 31-Mar-18 M 19 B8 | 3Mae 9 [ M.Macd8
Subseription of 5409 433 equity sharcs of Rs 10 cach IRefer notc 1i(a)l 54094 0471 = : = ==
Secnrities Premim on subserintion of 34.09 433 couily shares [Refer noie 10(h) 843906 | 1.795.29 | . : . q -

\
Cost charecd back by Haldine company: for sharine of resources (Refer note 28) 476 34 I5269 . . = - -
Intcllectual Property Riuls (IPR) fees (Refer note | below) 773.27 - . . - = E
Amouni reimbursed for other expenses 011 - - - - 2907 -
Cost charged to Halding/Fcllow Subsidiary companics for sharing of resources (Refer note 29) i
- . wiss | T I I
: 1.729.29 - =

Ii-'nmlm'cr: share-hascd payment expense [Refer note 25(hY — 343 84 30452 - = = - = .-
Remuneralion {Gross of Tax) . . - . - il kA T 2303
{¢) Balances as at vear end =} — B
_Trade Pavable [Refer notc 12(a)] 115258 - - - - R0 dd
Cber Ndneiil asacts - cuerent | Refer tale 60 z 2.034. 078 TR
Nole I: Expenditure incurred by the Paisab Marketing and C lting Privatc Limited (“the Compamy™) on brand creation, adserti and online marketing, till March 31, 2018, werc bome by the Etechaces Marketing and Consulting
Private Limited (“thc Holding Company’™*) and the Company' in the ratio of 30:70, respectively, as per the agreement with the Holding Company, as the Company was in its initial phase and such expenses were primarily, accretive (o the
cenhancement and visibility of the brand names However, the Company has di: inued 1o sharc the cxpenditurc incurred on adverti and onlinc marketing with the Holding company w.c I. April 01. 2018, as management has asscssed that

use of the brand names are now helping the Company driv ¢ exponential growth in their business in a substantive manncr and thercfore, it is prudent to absorb such expenses in its catircty within the Company. Thus, no advertisement and proniotion
costs have been shared with the Holding company during the year (March 31, 2018 Rs 1,729.29 lakhs)

Maoreovcr, the brand names "Paisabazaar™ ond “Paisabazaar.com" arc owned by Holding company, Considering the fact that the Company was in ils initial years of operations (being business devclopmient phase), the Holding company had not
charged any fecs lowards usage of Intelleciual Property Rights (IPR) tilt March 31, 2018. The operations of the Company have been considerably scaled up during the ycar and haye reached a reasonable size, such that benefits of using the brand
names, arc now providing impctus to the growth of the Company, rather than only enhancing the visibility of the brand name owncd by the Holding company. Hence, the Holding company has cntercd into an agreement with the company for an IPR
% of the revenuc of the Company w e  April 01,2018

Note 2: Amounts arc exclusive of applicablc taxes. unless otherwisc specified

*Mr Yashish Dahiva. Mr. Alok Bansal and Mr, Manoi Sharma do not take any remuncration from Paisabazaar Marketine and Consulline Private Limited

(d) Kev nersonnel
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) {(Rs. in Lakhs)
Short-lerm emplovce benefits 12314 12297
Posl-employ ment benefils 16 48 16.13
Long-tcrm employ ee benefits . .

Termination benelits . .
Emploves share based pavments AR 9% 93

Tutal vompensution 201.57 238.03
Durine the vear. Etechaces Markeline and Consultine Private Limited. the holdime compam shared somc of the resources with the Company and have charued (he
rclevant cost bascd on actual usage of resources by the Company, details of which arc as under:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Cost charged to Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limiled: (nct of applicable 1axes)
Rent 3292 135 62
Elcctricity Expenscs R3 66 1707
69

476.58

Paisabazaar has shared somc of the resources with the holding company and have charged the relevant cost 10 them based on actual usage of resources. details of which are as under

Year ended Year ended
March 31. 2019 March 31.2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Cost charged to Eicchaces Marketing and Consulting Privale Limited. (ncl ol applicable taxes}
Salan Expenscs . 787 33 _ e ~
Advertisement Expense . 172929 y s Al P
o 251684 S s W s\
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Note 30 : Fair Value measurements

a)

b)

Financial instruments by category

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised — pyrpy, Fvocy ~ Amortised
cost cost

Financial asscts
Investiments

- Mutual funds 1,001.09 - =
Trade receivables - 4,913.38 - 3,41562
Cash and cash equivalents - 867.72 - - 756.37
Other bank balances - 111.00 - 950.00
Loans- Security deposits - - 78.85 72.44
Employee Loans - 7.74 374
Unbilled revenue - - 1,524.02 —
Amount recoverable from Holding company for - - 2,034.94
expenses
Amount recoverable from fellow Subsidiary - 078 - 0.78
company for expenses
Interesl accrued but not due - 0.99 11.25
Total linancial assels 1,001.09 7,504.48 - - 7,245.14
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 4,888.50 - 1,959.93
Employee related payables - - 591.74 - 403.58
Lease equalisation reserve - 23.48 11.74
Total financial liabilities - - 5,509.72 - - 2,375.25

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at
fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability
of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting

standard. An explanation of each level follows undemeath the table.

Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets measured at fair value :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31,2019 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Financial Investments at FVTPL:

Investiments in Mutual funds 6(b) 1,001.09 1,001.09
Total financial assets 1,001.09 - 1,001.09
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March 31,2019 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Loans

Loans to employees 6(a)

Securily deposils Gia)

‘Total linancial assets




Financial assets measured at fair value :

(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March 31,2018 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial [nvesuments at FVTPL:
Investments in_Mutual funds o 6(b) -
Total financial asscels - - - -

Assets and liabilities which arc measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31,2018 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial asscts

Loans

Loans to employees 6(a) - : 374 3.74

Security deposits 6(a) - - 72.44 72.44

Total financial assets - - 76.18 76.18

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level |: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices, for example listed equity instruments, traded bonds
and mutual funds that have quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific

estimates, If all significant inputs required Lo fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: 1f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. For example,
unlisted equity securities, etc.

There are no transters between levels | and 2 during the year

The Company’s policy is to recognise transters into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices or mutual fund houses quotes (NAV) for such instruments. This is included in Level 1.

- the fair value of the remaining financial instrument is determined using discounted cash flow analysis. This is included in Level 3

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value

amount amount
Financial assets
Loans
Loans to employees 7.74 7.74 3.74 3.74
Security deposilts 78.85 78.85 7244 7244
Total financial assets 86.59 86.59 76.18 76.18

The carrying amounts of loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, trade payables and
other financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values




Note No.: 31

(a)

Financial risk and Capital management
Financial risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose il to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed 1o and how (he entity manages the tisk

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit 1isk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, othei Aging analysis Diversification of bank
financial assets measured al amortised cost. deposits, credil limits

and Ietters of credit

Liquidity risk Other financial liabilities Rolling cash flow Availability of surplus
forecasts cash and support from
parent company

Price Risk Investiments in mutual funds Credil rating Portfolio
diversilication and
regular monitoring

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meel its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s
receivables from custoiners

Trade receivables related credit risk

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit
risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry. A default on a financial asscl is when lhe counterparty fails to inake contractual payiments within 90 days of when they fall
due. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which Company operales and other macro-economic factors )

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company, matkel intelligence and goodwill, Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly nonitored by the management '

The Company has established an allowance for impainnent that represents ils expecled credit losses in respect of ttade and other receivables, The imanagement uses a simplified approach for
the purpose of computation of expecled credit loss for trade receivables and 12-month expected credit loss for other receivables. An impainnent analysis is performed at each reporting date on
an individual basis for major parties. The calculation is based on historical data of actual losses, The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect o trade receivables as low
Trade receivables are wrilten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery,

Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Basis for recognition of expected credit Joss provision

Categor Description of catego ) . ] .
ategory ! sory Sccurity deposits Loans to employees Trade reccivables

Assels where the counter-
party has strong capacity lo
meet the obligations and
where the risk of default is
negligible or nil

High qualily assels,
negligible credit risk

12-month expected credit 12-month expected Liletime expected

Assels where Ihete is low i X
loss credit loss credit losscs

risk of delault and where the
counter-party has sufficient
capacily (o meel the
obligations and where (here
has been low fiequency of
defaults in the past

Qualily assels, low
credit risk
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Year ended March 31, 2019:
(a) Expected credit loss for security deposits & loans to employees: (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
- 5 Carrying
Estimated gross ‘ - rying
. . . . Expected probability Expected amount net of
Particulars Citegory Description of category Assel group carrying amount at X . .
y of default credit losses impairment
deflault o
provision
Assels where the
Security deposits 78.85 0.00% 78.85
Loss allowance R aatloresas COlIIllCI'!JaIl)’ has sll'ong y dep °
- ality assets, acily
measured al 12 month . q ) i qucrl; O IS
. negligible credit risk obligations and where the
expecled credit losses S . . i s
risk of default is negligible | Loans Lo employées 7.74 0.00% 774
— o1 nil

{b) Lifetime expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:

(Amaouvnt in Rs. LI‘IMIS]

Particwlars/Apeing 0-90 days 91-180 days 181-365 days Morc than 365 days Total
Gross cartying amount 4,706.51 384.36 75.64 50.22 521672
Expecled loss rate 5.22% 522% 5.33% 66.67%
Expected credil losses
(Loss allowance 24575 20.07 4.03 33.48 303.34
provision}
Carrying amount of
trade receivables (net 4,460,75 364.29 71.60 16.74 4,913.38
of impairment)

Year ended March 31, 2018:

(a) Expcected credit loss for security deposits & loans (o employees:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Estimated gross Carrying
@ e . g Expected probability | Expected amount net of
Particulars Category Description of category Asset group carrying amount at , : .
of default credit losses impairment
default .
nrovision
Assels where the
counlerf)any has strong Secunity deposits 72.44 0.00% - 72.44
Loss allowance ) ) capacity to meet the
measured at 12 month Hlﬁl.]'(.]!;;amy Zsse?s;( (?bligalions a"“j wher‘e .lhe
expected credit losses negligible credit ns| risk of defauli is negligible
or il Loans to employees 3.74 0.00% - 3.74

(b) Lifetime expected credit loss for trade receivabl

es under simplified approach:

Amount in Rs. Laldis)

Particulars/Ageing 0-90 days 91-180 days 181-365 days More than 365 days Total
Gross carrying amount 3,283.39 - 137.27 9.02 3,429 .68
Expected loss rate 0.10% - 6.75% 16.65%
Expected credit losses
(Loss allowance 330 926 1.50 14 06
provision)
Carrying amount of
trade receivables (net 3,280.09 - 128.01 7.52 3,415.62
of impairment)
The following table summarizes (he change in loss allowance measured using the life time expected credit loss model:
Rs. In Lakhs
Loss allowance on | April 2017 -
Changes in loss allowance 14.06
Loss allowance on 31 March 2018 14.06
Changes in loss allowance 28928
Loss allowance on 31 March 2019 '_ 303.34
Treasury related credit risk
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other deposits with banks is liniied as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks with igh ym{jii ;I;;"rg“j. i
. . - - . - - N I 41,
rating agencies, accordingly the Company considers that the related credit risk is low. Impairment on these ilems are measured on (he IZ—l]lonl{L‘rq‘._-qlL_'_s:Ni] creditlofdhdgis

€%
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(b)

(c)

B)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk (hat the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated wilh its financial liabilitics (hat are settled by delivering cash or another {inancial asset
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is 1o enswie, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, withoul incuning unacceplable losses or risking damage 1o the Company’s reputation

The Company’s treaswry maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining liquidity through invesiments in liquid fimds. Management monitors roiling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity
position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows

Maturities of financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:
{Rs. in Lakhs)

0tol year More than 1 year Total
Mavrch 31, 2019
Non-derivatives
Trade payables 4,888.50 - 4,888 50
Other financial liabilities 597.74 2348 621.21
Total non-derivative liabilities 5.486.23 23.48 5500.71
March 31,2018
Non-derivatives
Trade payables 1,959.93 - 1,959.93
Other financial liabilities 403.58 11.74 41532
Total non-derivative liabilitics 2,363.51 11.74 2,375.25

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

The Company’s exposure 1o securilies price risk arises from investments held in mutual funds and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss. To manage ils price risk
anising from such investiments, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Further these are all debt base securities for which the exposure is primarily on account of interest rate risk. Quotes (NAV)
of these investments are available from the mutual fund houses.

Loss for the year would increase/decrease as a result of gains/losses on these securities classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Capital management
The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard ils ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders. The capital of the Company consist of equity capital and accumulated profits/losses —




Note 32 : Contingent liabilities
The Company is in the process ol evaluating the prior period impact of Supreme Court Judgment dated February 28,2019 clarifying the delinition of “basic wages” as per
=mployees' Provident Funds and Miscellancous Provisions Act, 1952 (P.F. Act) for the purpose of determining contribution lo Provident Fund under P I Acl

Note 33 : Scement information

An operaling segment is one whose operating resuls are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources lo be
allocated 1o the segment and asscss its performance. The Company has identified ils whole lime director as its chief operating decision maker. The Company's business
activities all within a single business segment as the Company is engaged in the business of showing online comparison and sales of financial products like
home/car/personal/education/other loans, credit cards, saving accounts, mutual funds etc. Based on nature of services rendered, the risk and returns, internal organization
and management structure and the internal performance reporting systems, the management considers that the Company is organized basis a single segment of rendering a
bundle of services to the financial services industry, The chiel decision maker reviews the performance of business as on overall basis. As the Company has a single
reportable segment, the segment wise disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 on Operating segment is nol applicable. Further, the Company earns entire revenue within
India only

The revenues of Rs, 3,595.54 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 - Rs. 1,377.06 Lakhs from single external customer) are derived from two individual cxternal customers.

Note 34 : Going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance along with the financial position of the Company, its
projeciced cash flows and letter of support provided by Etechaces Markeling and Consulting Private Limited have been reviewed by the Board of Directors and they have a
reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, the Company has continyed to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Note 35 : New and amended IND AS standards

a) Ind AS 116, Leases:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019 on March 30, 2019 notifying new
standard IND AS 116 “Leases” This Ind AS is applicable for annual period beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The Company is in the process of evalualing Ind AS 116
and expecting that there will be no material impact on the financial statements resulting from implementation of this standard.

b) Ind AS 12, Income Taxes:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, Tncome Taxes', in connection with accounling for taxes on dividend
The amendment clarifies that an entily shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. Effective date of application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 01,
2019, The Company is in the process of evaluating this amendment to Ind AS 12 and expecting that the said amendment will not have any impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

Note 36 : Events occurring after the reporting period
(a) The Company has, subsequent to the year end, issued 16,37,931 equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10/- each, at a premium of Rs. 222/- per share aggregatingto——
Rs. 3,799.99 Lakhs to its Holding Company-Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limited on June 13, 2019. AN

(b) Approval of financial statements - The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on July 29, 2019 [
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